THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE

JULY 10, 2024
6:00 P.M. — OFFICIAL MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER by Chair Roberts at 6:03 P.M.

ROLL CALL

= Present [1] = Absent

Committee Member Liaisons and City Staff

X Daniel Baume Councilmember Arlis Reynolds

X Andy Campbell [J Councilmember Jeffrey Harlan

X Edwin “Bo” Glover [J Councilmember Manuel Chavez

X Emily McClain X Hank Castignetti, Orange County Model Engineers (OCME)

X Jennifer Thomas X Kelly Brown, Parks & Community Services (PACS) Commission
X Kohl Crecelius, Vice Chair [X Kelly Dalton, Fairview Park Administrator

X Erik Roberts, Chair X Seung Yang, City Engineer

Xl Brian Gruner, Parks and Community Services Director
X Laura Fautua, Executive Assistant

X Diana Terreros, Recreation Specialist

X Kathia Viteri, Office Specialist Il

Committee Member McClain arrived at 6:14pm and left the meeting at 8:03pm.
Kelly Brown and Arlis Reynolds left at 8:05pm.
Kelly Brown returned at 8:15pm.

SPECIAL ITEM
A. FAIRVIEW PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE EMERGING RECOMMENDATIONS

Kelly Dalton presented background information on the Master Plan update project.
MIG presented the emerging recommendations for the Master Plan update.

Committee Member Campbell suggested title to specify year: July 2024 recommendations
instead of emerging recommendations.

Committee Member McClain does not want to remove the fly field from the park. Spoke about
visiting a fly field in Texas that is on top of a landfill and has a locked gate. Compared this to
Fairview fly field that’s on top of sacred native land and grasslands. Suggested a volunteer
program that educates the public about rules of the park and why they exist. Noted concern
for protecting the sacred grounds underneath the fill once that’s removed.

Public Comment:

Matt Garcia: Vice President of Harbor Soaring Society (HSS), stated the organization has
been active in the park since 1964, working to preserve it and supporting Measure AA. He
noted that HSS activities have been coordinated with the City and the US Fish and Wildlife
Service. He mentioned the renewal of their agreement with the City in 2021 with updated
guidelines and a recent extension for another six months. However, HSS is disappointed with
the emerging recommendation for the fly field and hopes to see data supporting this decision.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE — JULY 10, 2024 — PAGE 1


https://www.costamesaca.gov/home/showdocument?id=57428&t=638556138529340360

Member of the Public: Stated that the order of the next steps on Slide 30 should be different
with the environmental documents happening first in order to guide the master plan update.

Cynthia McDonald: Asked why there are no recommendations for the wetlands if they have
been a big issue for the last 10 years. Asked what input the committee has had on these
recommendations and if they will be ranked. Asked how much information the public has
received about the specifications for the recommended trails and roads. Fully supports
relocation of the HSS field.

Zach Jones: OCME board member, highlighted his introduction to the park was on the OCME
trains and how he kept coming back to volunteer. Noted he didn’t know anything about the
environment before getting involved in the train club and now passes on that knowledge to
train riders.

Member of the Public: Noted the path shown on slide 9 should be a diagonal line instead of
a horizontal line because it's human nature to cut corners.

Member of the Public: Stated that she lives next to the park on Nancy Lane and looks forward
to a boardwalk trail because the flooding makes a mess of it and damages the plant life
around it. Noted storm drain management should be considered with the trail. Supports
relocating the fly field within Fairview Park. Asked how these recommendations are going to
be prioritized and paid for. Noted she does not know what the unsuitable fill is and what it is
covering up. Inquired what kind of access will be available at the end of Pacific.

Jim Jones: Jim Jones stated that he has been involved with the park since the city purchased
it in 1985. He mentioned that the US Fish and Wildlife Service recommended a five-year
study on the vernal pools in the park, which should be completed before updating the plan.
He acknowledged HSS's long-term contributions to improving the park and emphasized the
importance of teaching youth about engineering, especially given the presence of local
engineering companies.

Member of the Public: Stated Fairview Park is special because she had never heard about
the fairy shrimp and birds before going there. Thanked them for protecting it.

Kim Hendricks: Fairview Park Alliance member, voiced glider flying does not protect the park
and they did illegal grading with the City’s permission, degrading a vernal pool watershed.
Showed an email from May 2023 from US Fish and Wildlife stating that they thought the fly
field would be relocated and that they do impact the birds. Stated that HSS only has about
20 Costa Mesa members and they do not have a growing membership the way OCME does.

Bettina Eastman: Wildlife biologist who has managed bird studies at Fairview for many years.
Recommended most trails be pedestrian only, especially the boardwalk trail because even
humans walking by can flush the birds if they’re using the vernal pools. Stated concern for
surface used for pathways and stated it should be porous or DG so that there is no erosion
from runoff. Does not support the fly field continuing. Noted there are continued issues at the
park with drones.

Lisa: 20-year resident and lives right next to Fairview Park on Canyon. Stated that there is a

horse trail at the entrance of the park that connects to Talbert Park and the river trail that she
would like to continue. Noted concern about the access road on the end of Pacific due to

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE — JULY 10, 2024 — PAGE 2



previous suggested project that also included parking which residents don’t want. Supports
the continuance of OCME at the park. Asked where Measure AA stands in all of this.

Paul Waggoner: Coastal Corridor Alliance worker, stated the organization is heavily invested
in Fairview and all the connected lands. Very much in support of all the habitat restoration
and habitat enhancement. Noted he supports previous comment about fill material and how
that will be removed without impacting habitat and Native American sacred site. Supports
maintenance storage and thinks the park would benefit from it. Highlighted the uniqueness
of the vernal pools and wants to see those preserved.

Member of the Public: Stated some recommendations are specific and others are more
general, recommend to give as much advanced notice as possible for September community
meeting. Advocated that the recommendations be prioritized and assigned a possible cost
and timeframe. Noted funding from Senator Min that is being used for the bluff restoration
and asked how that effort aligns with the master plan update.

Debbie Koken: Resident spoke about Slide 20 and slide 4, seem to be very similar and
expressed confusion for which one is the boardwalk and road for emergency vehicles. Noted
the whole presentation is very general. Stated the public will need more than a 30-day public
review in January.

Member of the Public: Advocated for advance notice for the September meeting and asked
slides to be available after today’s meeting. Asked about keeping the benches in the park
and would like to see them stay. Agrees with removing the fill including the dirt mounds that
are used as jumps, but noted that they are a good viewpoint of the entire park and suggested
a wooden elevated viewpoint to replace that.

Lynn Redman: Spoke about his son’s eagle scout project in the wetlands. Noted that on the
restoration slides there is nothing planned for those sites and he would like to see those
maintained in the plan. Stated one of the main issues is the Black Mustard and needs to have
a plan to control that species and its seedbank.

Committee Member McClain stated that the person who sent in a written public comment
that most of the park looks like it will be made into a preserve and asked about data about
how much park space is available in this city. She noted there is a lot of park space for use
but she would like the actual acreage of parks, sports fields, greenbelts, etc. Stated that if
the county or state owned this park we would be paying for entrance because it’s that special.

Vice Chair Crecelius stated that this is an ongoing process and there are not a lot of specifics
yet and the purpose of this meeting is to adopt a directional path rather than specific design
standards. Stated that something that is missing from the recommendations is a central place
where people go to understand how they should use the park. Would like to see that as an
amendment to point 9. Suggested an amendment to point 3 to include a palette of suitable
plant life for the park. Noted previous issues with plant donations and knowing what the
standards are. Another point is a designated area for children for play. Stated there is a clear
objection to it being another playground structure but there could be a designated area for
children and families. Agreed with comments about prioritization and cost and would like to
understand at what point in this process that will be addressed.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE - JULY 10, 2024 — PAGE 3



Chair Roberts noted to the public that the Fairview Park website has a lot of answers to their
questions, including Travis Brook’s previous presentation on restoration opportunities.
Agreed that the recommendations are vague and not prioritized. Agreed that cost and
timelines should be implemented. Asked if slides can be made available to the public.

MIG responded that prioritization is not part of the scope of the project because the Master
Plan is a very high level document. If anything moves to a project specific plan, that is where
further public input will be sought out, costs and budgets set, and a timeline assigned.

Committee Member Thomas asked if Mr. Dalton can answer why the wetlands are not part
of the recommendations. Suggested a viewing platform could be combined with the
boardwalk. Stated she is confused by entrance at Pacific and is unsure why Canyon entrance
isn’t enough. Noted nothing will be acted on without considering Measure AA.

Mr. Dalton responded that slide 7 shows no habitat restoration opportunities in the wetlands
and master plan does not propose any changes to the wetlands. Stated that the proposed
diagonal route is not the same as the pedestrian route. Responded that Canyon is not a
suitable entrance for fire vehicles according to the fire department.

Committee Member Baume asked if the master plan can address concerts in the park and
other large events.

Chair Roberts asked if the current events are affecting the park.
Committee Member Campbell asked if amplified sound affects wildlife.

Travis Brooks from MIG stated that sound can cause birds to leave the nest. Stated there
are many activities that can have adverse effects on birds during the nesting season, even
pulling weeds. Stated that having an event during the nesting season would require a
biologist to survey the areas, which has a cost attached to it and is also a logistical
consideration.

PACS Commissioner Brown encouraged to go further than signage and go into story telling.
Hopes the signs will be high quality, consistent in branding, inclusive in language, and have
a creative design. Asked if indigenous partners will be part of next steps internally because
they are not listed on next steps slide.

OCME Liaison Castignetti noted wetlands are not included in the plan even though the city
spends about $300,000 per year on maintaining it. Asked if it will be included or if it will be a
separate master plan.

Mr. Dalton agreed with using signs as a way to tell a story and said there will be thought into
consistent branding with further signs. Responded that the $300,000 maintenance contract
is for the entire park, although a good amount of it is for the wetlands. Noted the initial scope
of the project did not include the wetlands because Dudek did a detailed study of the wetlands
a couple years ago. Stated many of the items in that report have been improved, including
vector management. Stated that there is a tribal advisory group that has been met with a
couple times and the City has requested a written plan for how they would like to be
incorporated into this process. Also noted that each project that comes out of the master plan
will also incorporate tribal communication and a plan for the archaeological resources.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE - JULY 10, 2024 — PAGE 4


https://www.costamesaca.gov/community/fairview-park

Committee Member Glover stated that in general, he is very supportive of the direction things
are headed. Cautioned that in his experience, a nature play area for kids can also cause
destruction to native habitat but it is important to have them interact and play in nature to
connect with the natural world. Stated that if an area can be found that is contained and not
going to damage critical habitat it would be a fine addition to the park. Regarding benches
he stated he doesn’t know where they will be incorporated based on recommendations.
Noted importance of consistency of signage across the park. Cautioned about how much
land is dedicated to native plant nursery and stated there needs to be a dedicated champion
of that area so that it doesn’t fall through. Noted there are local plant nurseries that can supply
the park projects but understands the educational opportunities that a nursery provides.

Chair Roberts stated that all projects with specifics and details will go through the committee
when those projects take place.

Committee Member McClain voiced her son’s first engagement with the park was the planes,
then the shells at the park. Stated that HSS has to have a locked field and there needs to be
better enforcement with more rangers.

Councilmember Reynolds noted Talbert master plan is being updated and Randall Preserve
is also being planned. Asked for thoughts from committee members on coordination with
those processes. Wants to hear feedback on amenities for people with mobility limitations.
Asked about how teens will be engaged.

The Committee collaboratively went through 1-20 emerging recommendations and amended
staff recommendation.

Committee Member Campbell made a motion to amend item 20 to remove use of the access
point by maintenance vehicles. Committee Member Baume seconded.

In Favor: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume, Vice Chair Crecelius
Against: Chair Roberts, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas

Motion failed.

Committee Member Campbell then made a substitute motion to amend the item as seen in
Attachment 1. Vice Chair Crecelius seconded.
No objection, motion passed 6-0 with Committee member McClain absent.

Committee Member Thomas made a motion to approve recommendations 1-20 as amended
in Attachment 1. Amendments are notated in red. Vice Chair Crecelius seconded.
No objection, motion passed 6-0 with Committee member McClain absent.

PUBLIC COMMENTS - Correspondence received — Updated 7/10/24

No in-person public comments occurred.

COMMITTEE MEMBER and LIAISON COMMENTS None.
ADJOURNMENT at 9:10pm.

Next REGULAR Meeting: AUGUST 14, 2024 at 6:00 P.M

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE — JULY 10, 2024 — PAGE 5


https://www.costamesaca.gov/home/showdocument?id=57466&t=638562103187129871

ATTACHMENT 1
RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Fairview Park Steering Committee review and approve the Emerging

Recommendations for the Fairview Park Master Plan Update in accordance with the consultant’s
findings. The emerging recommendations have been coded by one or more letters (A-E) that
correspond with the following outcome areas of the Fairview Park Master Plan Update.

A. Trails and Public Access

B. Public Education and Interpretation

C. Resource Conservation and Preservation
D. Operations and Maintenance

E. Site Activities and Uses

Emerging Recommendations of July 2024

1. Provide clearly defined trails and establish a designated trail system for the park. (A, C, D)

2. Develop and adopt design standards for the designated trail system, including widths,
materials, and designated modes of travel by trail type. (A)

3. Finalize and adopt the habitat restoration and enhancement opportunities technical report
for Fairview Park. (C)

4. Establish- functional and a-beardwalk-ersimilar-pedestrian pathways allowing for pedestrian
access in both wet and dry seasons for approved trails (see Rec 1), including from the north
end of Pacific Avenue to the north end of Canyon Drive. The pathway shall be planned and
designed in a manner that protects the integrity of the vernal pools and the vernal pool
watersheds. (A, C)

5. Provide for long-term preservation of the vernal pools and their associated watersheds.
using suitable fencing, interpretive displays, and the removal of unauthorized user-defined
trails that have formed through the vernal pool watersheds. (A, C)

6. Relocate the fly field activity currently located within the vernal pool watershed to outside
Fairview Park; due to detrimental impacts to sensitive biological resources associated with
the activity and required maintenance of the fly field. Staff-is-working-with-the-medel-flying
e e i T = == (OF) =)

7. Revegetate and restore excessive areas of barren ground and exposed soil using
ecologically appropriate native vegetation. (A, C)

8. Provide for a potential native plant growing space on the east side of Fairview Park in a
location that avoids impacts to native habitat. The growing space shall be planned and
designed in consultation with a qualified restoration ecologist. (B, C, D)

9. Provide for improved and updated signage and interpretive materials to highlight the
exceptional conservation value of the site, and the importance of local and global

Page 1 of 2



biodiversity preservation. (B, C, D)

10. Provide for improved and updated signage and interpretive materials to highlight the cultural
history of the site, indigenous ecology, and to recognize the site’s significance to tribal
communities. (B, C)

4011, Utilize the site to enhance community education about the nexus between (1) human
mental-and-physical health_and; (2)-ard ecological health and conservation of natural open
spaces. (B, C)

12. Provide for an on-site maintenance and storage facility, or designated area on the east side
for efficient storage and use of Fairview Park restoration tools and equipment, and to
support the operations of the native plant growing space. (C, D)

13. Continue the current Master Plan recommendation that calls for the removal of unsuitable
fill materiaremeval (imported fill material placed on the Mesa in the late 1980s), protection
of culturally sensitive resources, and habitat restoration of the Fairview Park mesa. (C)

14. Continue the current Master Plan recommendation that calls for stabilization and habitat
restoration of the Fairview Park west bluffs to protect natural resources and public safety.
(€)

15. Continue the operation of the model train railroad facilities, and integrate environmental
interpretive content and ecological enhancements along the model train network to provide
educational opportunities to-the-youthio all ages while onboard the model train circuit. (B,
E)

16.Develop and Aadopt the Maintenance, Operations, and Management Plan for Fairview
Park, including the Invasive Plant Species Management Plan for Fairview Park. (A, C, D)

17. Continue to build eemmunity-partnerships with-leeal organizations invested in environmental
conservation, and expand opportunities to participate in community-based restoration,
stewardship, and nature-based educational activities. (B, C, E)

18.Provide continuing opportunities for tribal coordination and participation in the
implementation of the Updated Fairview Park Master Plan. (C, D)

19. Provide-an ADA-accessible pathway(s) from the main parking lot to the existing paved multi-
purpose path west of the main parking lot. (A, D)

20. Provide_an a-service-and-emergency and service vehicular access point into the park from

Pacific Avenue. D, to be accessible only by authorized public safety vehicles and
maintenance-vehicleevelop protocol quidelines for vehicular use of this access point. s-See

Attachment # for reference. (D)

JULY 10, 2024 | FAIRVIEW PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE EMERGING RECOMMENDATIONS ITEM | Page 2 of 2



	THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE
	Kelly Dalton presented background information on the Master Plan update project.
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	(Speakers will be limited to two minutes for items not on the agenda. The total time allotted for all Public Comments will be ten minutes.)-
	Correspondence received – Updated 7/10/24
	ADJOURNMENT at 9:10pm.


